
OCT. 3 
2019

SAHA REGULAR BOARD
MEETING

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY 
*REGULAR BOARD MEETING

818 S. Flores St., San Antonio, TX 78204 
12:30 p.m., Thursday, October 3, 2019 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
1. The Board of Commissioners or its committee may hold a closed meeting pursuant to Texas                           

Government Code § 551.071-076 for consultation concerning attorney-client matters, real estate,               
litigation, personnel, and security matters. The Board or committee reserves the right to enter into                           
closed meeting at any time during the course of the meeting.

2. Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence

PUBLIC COMMENT 
3. Public Comment - Citizens are provided three minutes each to speak to any agenda items.

MINUTES 
4. Minutes

● Approval of the September 5, 2019, Regular Board Meeting minutes

COMMITTEE MEETING UPDATE 
5. Update and discussion regarding the September 19, 2019, Resident Services Committee Meeting                     

(Charles Clack, Committee Chair)

INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
6. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5971, authorizing the President and CEO to approve                       

and proceed with a self-funded, third-party provider of SAHA employee medical and dental plans plus                           
fully insured vision, short-term disability, long-term disability, life insurance benefit plans and an                       
electronic benefits enrollment platform for calendar year 2020, at a total cost not to exceed                           
$5,215,705.00 (Muriel Rhoder, Chief Administrative Officer; Janie Rodriguez, Director of Human                   
Resources)

7. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5967, authorizing the award of a contract for                       
insurance broker of record for commercial property casualty and other SAHA insurance related                       
services to McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed                           
$24,000.00 for year one, $25,000.00 for year two, $26,000.00 for year three, $27,000.00 for year                           
four, and $28,000.00 for year five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four                                     

Page 2 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



additional one-year terms (Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Diana                       
Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and Accounting) 
 

8. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5966, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
Technical Accounting and GASB Consulting Services to CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP for an annual                       
cumulative amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for year one, and $50,000.00 each year for year two                               
through year five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year                                     
terms (Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Diana Kollodziej Fiedler) 
 

9. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5968, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
removal and replacement of bathtubs, shower pans, and associated repairs at various SAHA                         
properties to Harper Painting and Construction, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed                             
$170,000.00 for year one, $180,000.00 for year two, $210,000.00 for year three, $235,000.00 for                           
year four, and $235,000.00 for year five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four                                         
additional one-year terms (Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Brandee                       
Perez, Director of Federal Housing Programs)  
 

10. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5969, authorizing the award of a contract for natural                           
gas operator qualification training to Gasti, Inc. (HABE) for an amount not to exceed $70,000.00 for a                                 
two year period; for a period of one year with the option to renew one additional one-year term                                   
(Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services; Hector Martinez, Director of                       
Construction Services and Sustainability) 
 

11. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5970, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
Cassiano burn units rehabilitation to Geofill Material Technologies, LLC (SBE, Section 3 Business) for                           
an amount not to exceed $1,143,437.00 (Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General                         
Services; Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and Sustainability) 
 

12. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5965, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
development services construction project management staff augmentation to WTP America, LLC for                       
an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $250,000.00; for a period of one year with the option to                                   
renew up to one additional one-year term (Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General                           
Services; Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer) 
 

13. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5964, authorizing the conveyance of Phillis                     
Wheatley Park, located at 723 Arthur Street, San Antonio, Texas 78202, to the City of San Antonio to                                   
own, maintain, and operate as part of the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood Implementation Grant                         
Initiative (Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer) 
 

14. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5963, authorizing the conveyance of two vacant                       
residential lots located at 1533 Hays St. and 1535 Hays St., San Antonio, TX 78202, from the San                                   
Antonio Homeownership Opportunities Corporation to the San Antonio Housing Authority to be used                         
for construction of affordable homes under the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood Infill Strategy; and the                           
execution of any and all documents necessary to consummate such transaction (Timothy E. Alcott,                           
Real Estate and Legal Services Officer) 
 

15. Update and discussion regarding the Procurement Activity Report (Steven Morando, Director of                       
Procurement and General Services) 
 

16. President’s Report 
● Hispanic Heritage Month 

 

Page 3 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



● SAHA Launches United Way Campaign 
● Phillis Wheatley Park Grand Opening 
● SAHA Welcomes 2019 Fall Leadership Class 
● 2019 EIF Golf Tournament 

 
17. Citizens to be Heard at approximately 2:00 p.m. (may be heard after this time) Citizens wishing to                                 

speak on issues not related to items posted on the agenda should personally request to be placed on                                   
the Citizens to be Heard roster prior to 1:45 p.m. Citizens will be given three minutes to speak. Only                                     
one appearance per speaker will be permitted at any regular Board Meeting. If present, a speaker                               
may cede time to another speaker, but no speaker may have the floor for more than 9 minutes.                                   
Groups of citizens from the same organization are asked to share nine minutes to address the Board                                 
on certain items. Organizations must be represented by an Officer or a Board member, and follow the                                 
same speaking rules as individuals. 

 
18. *Closed Session: 

Consultation with Attorney 
Deliberate and obtain legal advice regarding legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec.                           
551.071 (consultation with attorney). 

● Discussion regarding removal of landlord from program 
 
Personnel/Consultation with Attorney 
Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal                   
of a public officer or employee or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee and                                     
obtain legal advice regarding legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec. 551.074                         
(personnel) and Texas Government Code Sec. 551.071 (consultation with attorney). 

● President and CEO Performance Evaluation Process 
 

19. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*Note: Whenever the Texas Open Meetings Act (Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code) provides for a closed meeting in matters                                             
concerning legal advice, real estate, contracts, personnel matters, or security issues, the Board may find a closed meeting to be necessary. For                                           
convenience of the citizens interested in an item preceded by an asterisk, notice is given that a closed meeting is contemplated. However, the                                             
Board reserves the right to go into a closed meeting on any other item, whether it has an asterisk, when the Board determines there is a need                                                     
and a closed meeting is permitted.   
“Pursuant to § 30.06, Penal Code, (trespass by holder license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter                                           
411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a concealed handgun.” 
“Pursuant to § 30.07, Penal Code, (trespass by holder license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H,                                           
Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a handgun that is carried openly. 

 

Page 4 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
 

MINUTES 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

September 5, 2019 
 

SCHEDULED:  1:00 p.m. at  818 S. Flores St., San Antonio, TX, 78204 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair 
Jessica Weaver, Vice Chair 
Charles Clack, Commissioner 
Jo-Anne Kaplan, Commissioner 
Sofia A. Lopez, Commissioner 
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
 
 

COUNSEL:  Doug Poneck, Escamilla &  
Poneck, LLP 

TRANSLATOR: BCC Communications 

   
STAFF:   
David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 
Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer 
Muriel Rhoder, Chief Administrative Officer 
Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services 
Officer 
Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative 
Technology 
Kristi Baird, Director of Beacon Communities 
Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and 
Accounting 
Domingo Ibarra, Director of Security 
Aiyana Longoria, Director of Internal Audit 

Adrian Lopez, Director of Community Development 
Initiatives 
Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and 
Sustainability 
Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and  
General Services 
Brandee Perez, Director of Federal Housing 
Programs 
Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services 
and Neighborhood Revitalization 
Janie Rodriguez, Director of Human Resources 
Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management 
 
 
 

Item 1: Meeting called to order 
Chair Morris A. Stribling, DPM called the meeting to order at 1:07 p.m.  

 
Item 2: Pledge of Allegiance/Moment of Silence 

Recitation of pledge and moment of silence 
 
MINUTES 
 

Item 3: Minutes 
● Approval of the August 1, 2019, Regular Board Meeting minutes 
● Approval of the August 15, 2019, Special Board Meeting minutes 
● Approval of the August 23, 2019, Special Board Meeting minutes 

 

Page 5 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

Prior to the approval of the meeting minutes, Mr. Doug Poneck, Board Counsel, informed the                             
Board of Commissioners that according to the new 2019 Legislative Changes to the Open                           
Meetings Act, effective September 1, 2019, the public is entitled to comment and speak to any                               
agenda items. Chair Stribling, DPM, then opened the floor to anyone requesting to address and                             
provide comments to the Board of Commissioners regarding the agenda items of September 5,                           
2019, meeting. There were no citizens who came forward to request to speak on any agenda                               
items. 
 

Motion: Commissioner Kaplan moved to approve all sets of meeting minutes as listed above.                         
Commissioner Weaver seconded the motion. Approved. 
 

 
Member 

 
Aye 

 
Nay 

Absent 
At Time of Vote 

 
Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair  X       
Jessica Weaver, Vice Chair  X       
Charles Clack, Commissioner  X       
Jo-Anne Kaplan, Commissioner  X       
Sofia A. Lopez, Commissioner  X       
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner  X       

 
COMMITTEE MEETING UPDATES 
 

Item 4: Update and discussion regarding the August 15, 2019, Special Board Meeting  
Chair Stribling, DPM, provided an abbreviated version of the highlights of the August 15, 2019,                             
meeting. The entire report was included in the Regular Board Meeting packet of September 5,                             
2019. The report included the following items as listed below:  

 
The following resolutions were approved to move forward to the Board meeting: 

 
Consideration and appropriate action regarding Resolution 5962, authorizing the Las Varas                     
Public Facility Corporation and the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to approve an                         
inducement Resolution for the proposed tax credit and tax exempt bond financing of the                           
Tampico Apartments project was presented by Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal                         
Services Officer 

 
Consideration and appropriate action regarding Resolution 5949, authorizing the selection of                     
Catellus Development Corporation as Master Developer for the remaining Victoria Commons                     
sites; authorizing the President and CEO and his designated staff to negotiate and execute                           
development agreements as needed, to submit applications for financing; create any legal                       
entities required; execute contracts for conveyance of land; retain legal counsel; and all other                           
matters in connection herewith was presented by Steven Morando, Director of Procurement                       
and General Services, and Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and                     
Neighborhood Revitalization 

 
Consideration and appropriate action regarding Resolution 5961, approving the renewal of                     
the Emphasys Computer Solutions annual maintenance and support agreement for an                     
amount not to exceed $156,693.00 for year one, $164,527.65 for year two, $172,754.03 for                           
year three, $181,391.73 for year four, and $190,461.32 for year five; for a period of one year,                                 
with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms was presented by Steven                             
Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services 

Page 6 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
Consideration and appropriate action regarding Resolution 5951, authorizing the award of an                       
agency wide contract for automatic gate maintenance, repair, and replacement services to                       
Gate Services & Supply, LLC for an annual amount not to exceed $52,000.00 for year one,                               
$57,000.00 for year two and year three, $59,000.00 for year four, and $61,000.00 for year                             
five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms                                   
was presented by Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services, and Brandee                         
Perez, Director of Federal Housing Programs 

 
Consideration and appropriate action regarding Resolution 5960, authorizing the award of                     
an Agency Wide contract for biohazard cleanup services to the Trinidad Group dba BioTechs                           
(ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE, WBE) for an annual amount not to exceed $80,000.00 for a period                               
of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms was presented by                                 
Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services, and Brandee Perez, Director of                         
Federal Housing Programs 

 
Hold a Public Hearing and consideration and appropriate action regarding Resolution 5959,                       
approving Moving to Work Flexibilities for VASH Program was presented by Brandee Perez,                         
Director of Federal Housing Programs 

 
CHOICE NEIGHBORHOOD 

 
Update and discussion regarding Wheatley Choice Neighborhood activities relating to                   
People, Housing and Neighborhood   
Mr. Adrian Lopez, Director of Community Development Initiatives, provided updates regarding                     
the People component of the report and informed the Board that the Endowment Proposal had                             
been submitted and is in the final stages of approval from HUD. Mr. Lopez reported that during                                 
the transition, staff should be in place by September 30, 2019. Ms. Arrie Porter, Consultant,                             
provided updates regarding the Neighborhood component of the report and announced that the                         
ground-breaking of the linear park is scheduled for September of this year. Ms. Porter provided                             
a brief presentation that included photos of the park. Ms. Robles provided a brief update                             
regarding the Wheatley Choice grant budget and reported that most of the funds still remaining                             
would be exhausted by the deadline date.   

   
INDIVIDUAL ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION 

   
Update and discussion regarding the Federal Housing Quarterly Report  
Mr. Joel Tabar, Assistant Director of Federal Housing Programs, reported that the U.S.                         
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires public housing authorities                     
administering the Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing Programs to report several                       
measures of program performance and financial information. Staff has completed data collection                       
and analysis for both programs in the report previously provided to the Board, and will continue                               
to provide updates as requested to the Board of Commissioners. Mr. Tabar reported on the                             
following data for the April 2019 to June 2019 quarter: demographics, waitlist totals, termination                           
totals, voucher utilization rates and Public Housing occupancy rates. 

   
Update and discussion regarding the Beacon Communities Capital Update 
Ms. Kristi Baird, Director of Beacon Communities, provided a summary and reported the financial                           
impact of the following community capital projects: Woodhill Apartments, Monterrey Park                     
Apartments, Castle Point Apartments, La Providencia Apartments, Villa De Valencia Apartments,                     

Page 7 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

Sunshine Plaza Apartments, Pecan Hill Apartments, Burning Tree Apartments, Encanta Villa                     
Apartments and Churchill Estates Townhomes. 

 
Item 5: Update and discussion regarding the August 23, 2019, Special Board Meeting   

Vice Chair Jessica Weaver provided the Special Board Meeting update of the August 23, 2019,                             
Special Board Meeting. The report included the following items as listed below:  
 
Update and discussion regarding SAHA’s Affordable Housing Development Deal Structures  
Mr. Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal Services Officer, introduced members from                         
Bracewell LLP and then provided a presentation, which included the following topics for                         
discussion: New Development Questions, Tax Credit Deals of 4% and 9%, Income Averaging                         
and Unit Mix, PFC Structure and Rent Determination. 
 
The Board of Commissioners were also given an opportunity to ask questions concerning                         
SAHA’s Affordable Housing Development projects and SAHA Directors from various                   
departments were present to answer questions concerning their respective departments. 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 
 
Item 6: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5962, authorizing the Las Varas Public                     

Facility Corporation and the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to approve an                       
inducement Resolution for the proposed tax credit and tax exempt bond financing of the                           
Tampico Apartments project  
Consent - This resolution corresponds with Resolution 19FAC-08-15 and with Resolution                     
19LVPFC-08-15 . 
 

Item 7: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5949, authorizing the selection of Catellus                     
Development Corporation as Master Developer for the remaining Victoria Commons sites;                     
authorizing the President and CEO and his designated staff to negotiate and execute                         
development agreements as needed, to submit applications for financing; create any legal                       
entities required; execute contracts for conveyance of land; retain legal counsel; and all other                           
matters in connection herewith 
Consent  
 

Item 8: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5961, approving the renewal of the                     
Emphasys Computer Solutions annual maintenance and support agreement for an amount                     
not to exceed $156,693.00 for year one, $164,527.65 for year two, $172,754.03 for year                           
three, $181,391.73 for year four, and $190,461.32 for year five; for a period of one year, with                                 
the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms  
Consent 

 
Item 9: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5951, authorizing the award of an agency                       

wide contract for automatic gate maintenance, repair, and replacement services to Gate                       
Services & Supply, LLC for an annual amount not to exceed $52,000.00 for year one,                             
$57,000.00 for year two and year three, $59,000.00 for year four, and $61,000.00 for year                             
five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms 
Consent 

 
Item 10: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5960, authorizing the award of an Agency                       

Wide contract for biohazard cleanup services to the Trinidad Group dba BioTechs (ESBE,                         

Page 8 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

HABE, MBE, SBE, WBE) for an annual amount not to exceed $80,000.00 for a period of one                                 
year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms  

  Consent 
 
Item 11: Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5959, approving Moving to Work                   

Flexibilities for VASH Program   
Consent 
 

Motion: Commissioner Clack moved to approve Consent Items 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11. Commissioner                             
McClure seconded the motion. Approved. 

 
 
Member 

 
Aye 

 
Nay 

Absent 
At Time of Vote 

 
Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair  X       
Jessica Weaver, Vice Chair  X       
Charles Clack, Commissioner  X       
Jo-Anne Kaplan, Commissioner  X       
Sofia A. Lopez, Commissioner  X       
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner  X       

 
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

   
Item 12: Update and discussion regarding the Procurement Activity Report   

Mr. Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services, reported that through the calendar                         
quarter ending June 30, 2019, the San Antonio Housing Authority’s Procurement Department                       
issued nineteen formal and eighteen informal solicitations, receiving a total of 200 responses.                         
New contracts awarded through the second quarter were $11,220,557.00; and contract                     
renewals in the amount of $13,527,508.00, to include $6,375,000.00 in blanket awards, which                         
resulted in a grand total awarded of $24,748,065.00. Of this total, $6,528,878.00 or 35.5                           
percent, was awarded to Small, Women-Owned and Minority Business Enterprises (SWMBE),                     
and $1,605,132.50 or 8.7 percent, was awarded to Section 3 business concerns. 
 
Through the second calendar quarter ending June 30, 2019, SAHA contractors reported 65 of                           
their 131 new hires qualified as Section 3 individuals, which represented 49.6 percent of all new                               
hires. The new hires were composed of forty-seven males and eighteen female individuals. The                           
weighted average wage rate for these Section 3 individuals is $14.78 per hour. 
 
Mr. Morando also provided an update regarding pest control services. Contract Performance                       
Evaluations were sent out to property management to rate the performance of these                         
contractors, during the first year renewal option. Massey Services received an overall rating of                           
63.75 (unacceptable) and Pest Management received an overall rating of 70 (marginal). After                         
review of the ratings and discussions regarding the performance of these contractors, the                         
Director of Beacon Communities has recommended that SAHA renew both contracts with a                         
corrective action plan to improve the performance of both vendors, during the upcoming year. 
 
Mr. Morando also reported the current solicitations, the closed/pending solicitations, the                     
solicitations in development and the current blanket awarded projects. A complete report had                         
been previously provided to the Board of Commissioners. 

 
 

Page 9 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
 

After the Procurement Report, Chair Stribling, DPM, recessed at 1:44 p.m. for the Las Varas                             
Public Facility Corporation Meeting and the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation Board                       
Meeting. The Regular Board Meeting was then reconvened at 1:49 p.m.  
 

Item 13: President’s Report 
● 2019 EIF Golf Tournament 
● Alazan Lofts Zoning Approval 
● HUD Approves Additional Funding for Victoria Plaza 
● Risk Management Awards 
● Employee Health Fair 
● Back to School Events (Alazan-Apache and Jobs Plus) 
● 2019 William “Bill” Sinkin Education Summit  

 
Item 14: Citizens to be Heard 

There were no Citizens to be Heard. 
 
Chair Stribling, DPM, recessed for Closed Session at 2:10 p.m.  
 

Item 15: *Closed Session: 
Consultation with Attorney 
Deliberate and obtain legal advice regarding legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code                         
Sec. 551.071 (1)(B)(settlement offer). 

● Litigation Update 
 

Personnel/Consultation with Attorney 
Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or                 
dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or                                   
employee and obtain legal advice regarding legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code                         
Sec. 551.074 (personnel) and Texas Government Code Sec. 551.071 (consultation with attorney). 

● President and CEO Performance Evaluation and Contract 
 

After returning from Closed Session, the Regular Board Meeting was reconvened at 5:50 p.m.                           
and the Board of Commissioners voted on the Personnel/Consultation with Attorney item:                       
President and CEO Performance Evaluation and Contract. 
 

Motion: Commissioner Kaplan motioned to approve the President and CEO Performance Evaluation                     
Contract as discussed during Closed Session. Commissioner McClure seconded the motion.                     
Approved. 

 
 
Member 

 
Aye 

 
Nay 

Absent 
At Time of Vote 

 
Abstained 

Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair  X       
Jessica Weaver, Vice Chair      X   
Charles Clack, Commissioner  X       
Jo-Anne Kaplan, Commissioner  X       
Sofia A. Lopez, Commissioner  X       
Marie R. McClure, Commissioner  X       

 

Page 10 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
Item 16: Adjournment 

With no objections. Chair Stribling, DPM, adjourned the meeting at 5:52 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ ______________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Date 
Chair 
 
 
________________________________ ______________________ 
David Nisivoccia Date 
President and CEO 

Page 11 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



  

 
 
To: Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: October 3, 2019 
 
From: Charles Clack, Committee Chair, Resident Services Committee 
 
Subject: Update and discussion regarding the September 19, 2019, Resident Services                   

Committee Meeting 

 
A Resident Services Committee meeting was held on Thursday, September 19, 2019, in the community                             
room of the Park at Sutton Oaks Apartments. Attendees included Commissioner Charles Clack,                         
Commissioner Jo-Anne Kaplan, Commissioner Marie R. McClure, SAHA President and CEO David                       
Nisivoccia and SAHA staff. The meeting was attended by eight residents. The following items were                             
discussed: 
 
Update and discussion regarding the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS), Jobs Plus and Resident                       
Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) programs 
Mr. Adrian Lopez, Director of Community Development Initiatives, provided a summary of the FSS, Jobs                             
Plus and ROSS programs he currently oversees. The report also included a summary of the program                               
highlights for each program.  
 
Mr. Lopez also provided responses to various questions the Board of Commissioners asked regarding the                             
Community Development Initiatives Report. 

 
Update and discussion regarding the Elderly and Disabled Resident Survey 
Mr. Lopez reported that a survey for staff, residents and partners was completed in an effort to ensure that                                     
the Elderly and Disabled Services (EDS) program is structured to provide services that meet the                             
comprehensive needs of residents. Mr. Lopez provided a brief summary of the preliminary conclusion                           
along with the following initial recommendations: focus on health and wellness, provide volunteer fairs and                             
make connections for residents and continue to expand on digital literacy and training for the elderly and                                 
disabled residents. 
 
Update and discussion regarding the Fair Avenue Apartments Sprinkler Project  
Ms. Brandee Perez, Director of Federal Housing Programs, reported that in preparation for the upcoming                             
Fair Avenue sprinkler project (a requirement mandated by the City of San Antonio for high rise buildings),                                 
Elderly Disabled Services (EDS) staff were tasked to complete assessments for current Fair Avenue                           
residents. Mr. Lopez then provided the initial results of the survey and the following concerns and issues                                 
have been identified: residents have indicated that they may have difficulty being away from their                             
apartments for long periods of time, due to anxiety and other social issues; residents have indicated that                                 
they take medications and usually take a nap during the day; and some residents are bed bound and may                                     
have difficulty mobilizing. SAHA will continue to work with staff and partnerships to address resident                             
concerns and issues.   

 
 
 

Page 12 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 

SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
RESOLUTION 5971, AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO APPROVE AND PROCEED                     
WITH A SELF-FUNDED, THIRD-PARTY PROVIDER OF SAHA EMPLOYEE MEDICAL AND                   
DENTAL PLANS PLUS FULLY INSURED VISION, SHORT-TERM DISABILITY, LONG-TERM                 
DISABILITY, LIFE INSURANCE BENEFIT PLANS AND AN ELECTRONIC BENEFITS                 
ENROLLMENT PLATFORM FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2020, AT A TOTAL COST NOT TO EXCEED                         
$5,215,705.00   
 
  
 _____________________    ________________________     _________________________ 
 David Nisivoccia  Muriel Rhoder Janie Rodriguez 
 President and CEO  Chief Administrative Officer Director of Human Resources    
 ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5971, authorizing the President and CEO to                       
approve and proceed with a self-funded, third-party provider of SAHA employee medical and                         
dental plans plus fully insured vision, short-term disability, long-term disability, life insurance                       
benefit plans and an electronic benefits enrollment platform for calendar year 2020, at a total                             
cost not to exceed $5,215,705.00.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The total proposed cost for the SAHA self-funded (self-insured) medical and dental plans for                           
January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020, is projected to be $5,055,476.00. Included in this                             
projected cost is the annual administrative fee for the operation of the self-funded plan of                             
$101,374.00, projected claims costs of $4,006,014.00, and an estimated stop loss premium of                         
$948,088.00.  
 
SAHA will implement programs to control costs in the area of prescriptions. Presently, SAHA                           
participates in the Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) Basic Drug Formulary. A move to a Balanced                               
Formulary and the addition of Step Therapy and Prior Authorization will present a total savings of                               
$142,216.00. When allowed to do so, staff will grandfather current employees in various programs                           
to minimize impact. However, twenty-five employees, representing approximately 6% of our total                       
population may find themselves requiring additional steps in obtaining their current prescriptions.                       
SAHA will also implement Livongo, a program of enhanced care for those individuals with                           
diabetes. The projected cost of $41,950.00 covers approximately fifty employees. Similarly, an                       
incremental fee of $650.00 for the year will further support cessation efforts for employees that                             
wish to stop using nicotine products. The net effect of these programs is a savings of $99,616.00.  
 
The total proposed cost for SAHA’s fully insured programs of vision, employer paid life/accidental                           
death and dismemberment (ad&d), short-term and long-term disability and the Employee                     
Assistance Plan is $260,804.00. The agency will maintain Avesis as the carrier for vision                           
coverage. However, for Employer Paid Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment (1X Base                         
Salary), plus Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability, the agency proposes to move                           
forward with a new provider. Dearborn National Life Insurance Company, which is affiliated with                           

Page 13 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 

SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019
 

Blue Cross Blue Shield. A transfer from Prudential to Dearborn National Life Insurance Company                           
will afford SAHA the following:  
 

- A first year discount of $45,000.00 for the bundling of our medical/dental products with                           
our disability and employer paid life and ad&d products.  

- The ability to match current voluntary products for Supplemental Life and Accidental                       
Death and Dismemberment for Employee, Spouse and Child coverage.  

- The ability to offer extended Voluntary products for Critical Illness and Accident                       
Coverage.   

- The ability to provide 3rd party services for the management of FMLA and ADA claims.                             
This partnership is to minimize compliance and risk issues that can arise if claims are                             
mismanaged. The costs for the services is projected to be $11,967.00.   

 
In addition to the Voluntary products, the Agency requests the opportunity to offer MetLife at no                               
cost to the organization.  MetLife benefits include access to a network of attorneys to assist with:  

- Identity Theft  
- Estate Planning  
- Elder Care Issues 

 
Over the past two years, SAHA has utilized an electronic benefits enrollment system (SmartBen)                           
and an electronic system (Accord), for issuing required forms under the Affordable Care Act. The                             
two programs have a combined cost of $32,074.00.   
 
These costs are reflected in the approved 2019 - 2020 budget and represent a total decrease of                                 
11.18% from the 2019 budget projections.  
 
SUMMARY: 
In 2008, SAHA moved to a self-funded (self-insured) plan to help control the rising costs of health                                 
care. Two PPO plans are offered to employees: a standard (lower cost) PPO plan and a richer                               
(higher cost) PPO plan for which the employee bears a larger share of the cost. There are                                 
currently 405 employees in the plans; 302 are enrolled in the low PPO plan and 103 are enrolled                                   
in the high PPO plan.  
 
McGriff, Seibels & Williams of Texas, Inc. (MSW) is the current Benefits Consultant. MSW issued a                               
Request for Proposals on SAHA’s behalf for 2020 for a carrier for Life (Basic, Voluntary and                               
Accidental Death and Dismemberment, Short Term Disability, Long Term Disability and other                       
Voluntary Products.  
 
The BCBS medical and dental plans are under a rate guarantee for 2020. SAHA reviews benefits                               
and funding of the plan annually. There will be no increase to employee contributions or SAHA’s                               
funding level. There will also be no increase to deductibles nor co-pays.  
 
A stop-loss premium increase of 15% is included in the 2020 projections. Stop-loss proposals                           
require additional claims experience before costs can be finalized. Final Stop Loss costs are                           
expected to be available by December 1, 2019.  
 
 

Page 14 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 

SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019
 

SAHA remains highly competitive and favorable in comparison to other employers with an                         
average employer contribution of 85% compared to the 15% employee contribution. The same                         
holds true for deductible amounts, out of pocket maximums, and copayments, as compared to                           
other similar employer packages.  
 
Ongoing Health and Wellness Initiatives:  

● Reimbursements for certified weight loss programs and gym memberships 
● Reimbursements for participation in health and wellness events 
● Annual health and safety fairs 
● Monthly vitamin shot clinics 
● Spring event with exercise demonstrations and various fitness activities 

 
The proposed benefits program for SAHA employees in 2020 will include the most competitive: 

● Health care carrier as the third-party provider of employee medical and dental plans 
● Provider for the employee vision plan 
● Third-party provider of employee long-term and short-term disability plans 
● Provider for employee life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment  
● Provider for enhanced voluntary products 
● Provider for employee Section 125 Flexible Spending Plan  
● Provider for 3rd party FMLA and ADA administration  

 
Timeline: 
August 8, 2019 - Review BCBS Claims Activity (January to June 2019)  
August 8, 2019 - Review Results of RFP 
September 19, 2019 - Present at Operations and Choice Neighborhood Committee 
October 3, 2019 - Obtain approval at the Board Meeting 
October to November 2019 - Open Enrollment  
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Invest in our greatest resource - our employees - and establish a track record for integrity,                               
accountability, collaboration and strong customer service. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5971 
SAHA Benefit Comparison - Medical  
SAHA Benefit Comparison - Dental  
Projected Benefit Expense for 2020  
 

Page 15 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

San Antonio Housing Authority  
Resolution 5971 

 
RESOLUTION 5971, AUTHORIZING THE PRESIDENT AND CEO TO APPROVE AND PROCEED                     
WITH A SELF-FUNDED, THIRD-PARTY PROVIDER OF SAHA EMPLOYEE MEDICAL AND                   
DENTAL PLANS PLUS FULLY INSURED VISION, SHORT-TERM DISABILITY, LONG-TERM                 
DISABILITY, LIFE INSURANCE BENEFIT PLANS AND AN ELECTRONIC BENEFITS                 
ENROLLMENT PLATFORM FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2020, AT A TOTAL COST NOT TO EXCEED                         
$5,215,705.00 
 
WHEREAS, the San Antonio Housing Authority (SAHA) desires to provide a wide range of                           
insurance benefits for its employees; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current employee self-insured administration contracts will terminate on                   
December 31, 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, the total cost for the SAHA self-funded (self-insured) medical and dental plans for                           
January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020, is projected to be $5,055,476.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, included in this projected cost is the total annual administrative fee paid to Blue                             
Cross Blue Shield for the operation of the self-funded plan of $101,374.00, the stop loss fee of                                 
$948,088.00, and a projected claims amount of $4,006,014.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, SAHA will implement programs to control costs in the area of prescriptions with                           
projected savings of $142,216.00. SAHA will fund a program to support extended diabetes care                           
at a cost of $41,950.00 and nicotine cessation at $650.00 per year. These combined programs                             
are projected to produce a net savings of $99,616.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the total proposed cost for SAHA’s fully insured programs of vision, life, short term,                             
and long term disability is $260,804.00, and SAHA proposes to move forward with Dearborn                           
National Life Insurance Company as a new carrier for Basic Life and Accidental Death and                             
Dismemberment, Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability. Dearborn will offer other                       
Voluntary products to include Critical Illness and Accident Coverage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the addition of Dearborn National Life Insurance Company will result in first year                           
savings of $45,000.00 and the ability to utilize third party services in the administration of Family                               
and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and Americans with Disability Act (ADA) claims. These services are                             
projected to cost $11,967.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed approximate annual cost for an electronic benefits enrollment platform,                       
and a third party provider of tax forms required per the Affordable Care Act is $32,074.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the costs are within the Board approved FY 2019-2020 operating budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents necessary to carry out the various transactions described                         
above.  

Page 16 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby:  
 

1) Approves Resolution 5971, authorizing the President and CEO to approve and                     
proceed with a self-funded, third-party provider of SAHA employee medical and                     
dental plans plus fully insured vision, short term disability, long term disability, and                         
life insurance benefit plans, an electronic benefits enrollment platform for calendar                     
year 2020, and third party providers for administrative services at a total cost not to                             
exceed $5,215,705.00.  

 
2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all documents                     

necessary to carry out the various transactions authorized above. 
 
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019.  
 
 
_______________________________   
Morris A. Stribling, DPM   
Chair, Board of Commissioners   
 
 
Attested and approved as to form:  
 
______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia  
President and CEO 

 

Page 17 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 18 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 19 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 20 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 21 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

   BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

    
RESOLUTION 5967, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR INSURANCE                   
BROKER OF RECORD FOR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY CASUALTY AND OTHER SAHA                   
INSURANCE RELATED SERVICES TO MCGRIFF, SEIBELS & WILLIAMS, INC. FOR AN ANNUAL                       
CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $24,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE, $25,000.00 FOR                     
YEAR TWO, $26,000.00 FOR YEAR THREE, $27,000.00 FOR YEAR FOUR, AND $28,000.00                       
FOR YEAR FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR                                 
ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 
 
 
  ________________________    ______________________ _______________________  
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando Diana Fiedler 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement Director of Finance and 

and General Services Accounting 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5967, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
insurance broker of record for commercial property casualty and other SAHA insurance related                         
services to McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed                             
$24,000.00 for year one, $25,000.00 for year two, $26,000.00 for year three, $27,000.00 for                           
year four, and $28,000.00 for year five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to                                       
four additional one-year terms.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The current award recommendation for the insurance broker of record for commercial, property,                         
casualty, and other SAHA insurance related services is not expected to exceed an annual                           
cumulative amount of $24,000.00 for year one, $25,000.00 for year two, $26,000.00 for year                           
three, $27,000.00 for year four, and $28,000.00 for year five and will be funded through the                               
operating budgets and/or available reserves. 
 
SUMMARY: 
SAHA requires a Broker of Record (BOR) to ensure compliance with the U. S. Department of                               
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and lender insurance requirements. In addition, the BOR                         
assists SAHA in its annual insurance renewal or placement process to protect its assets – real                               
property, human capital, program participants/visitors and operational processes. 
  
The current BOR is McGriff, Seibels, and Williams (MSW). The local branch of MSW is exclusively                               
a broker for public entities including public housing authorities (PHAs). MSW has proven to be a                               
knowledgeable, hands-on, strategic partner who understands the public housing business well.                     
They bring many tools and relevant experience to the table including, but not limited to, loss                               
prevention, loss control, analysis, trending data and creative solutions to assist on matters of                           
risk. MSW also brings consultation services, training resources and licenses that allow premium                         
comparisons in the market. 

Page 22 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

SAHA's primary insurer for property developments is HAI Group. SAHA has an historic and                           
vested interest in HAI Group who is an insurer for PHAs only nationwide. In the mid-1980s, the                                 
public housing community faced a crisis as insurance companies refused to insure PHAs. PHAs                           
were labeled as high risk and rising premiums reached unaffordable levels despite being                         
required by HUD. In 1987, a solution emerged -- the Housing Authority Insurance Group (HAI                             
Group) was formed; it is a member owned organization originally funded by the PHAs it insures.                               
Founding PHAs, including SAHA, became member owners in 1987, when they paid into HAI                           
Group to fund insuring fellow member/owner PHAs. The initial investment has paid for itself many                             
times over and SAHA’s current equity stands at about $640,000.00. 
  
HAI Group remains the most competitive insurer for PHAs. Staff conducts market penetration                         
studies every two years to remain current and relevant in premium comparisons. HAI Group has                             
a reciprocal relationship with its members. SAHA receives annual dividend disbursements from                       
HAI Group, averaging $100,000.00 a year. These dividends are paid to all member owners                           
based on the annual performance of the insurance company, global catastrophic losses, and                         
loss prevention measures executed by staff.  

On July 12, 2019, SAHA issued a Request For Proposals #1906-953-52-4937 for Insurance Broker                           
of Record for Commercial, Property, Casualty, and other SAHA insurance Related Services that                         
closed on August 12, 2019. The RFP was published on the SAHA website, Electronic State                             
Business Daily (ESBD), The Hart Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public Purchase and direct solicited to                             
fifty-six firms. A total of four proposals were received in response to this solicitation: Arthur J                               
Gallagher Risk Management Services (Austin), Arthur J Gallagher Risk Management Services                     
(Dallas), McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc., and USI Southwest, Inc. All proposals were evaluated                           
on the following criteria: experience and capacity of consultant, quality and methodology,                       
disclosures/financial capability, fees/cost, strength of the consultant’s Section 3 Utilization Plan,                     
and Strength of the consultant’s SWMBE Plan. Based on the above, we are recommending                           
contract award to McGriff Seibels & Williams, Inc. They are the highest rated responsive and                             
responsible proposer. 
 
McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. was founded in 1886, and is headquartered in Birmingham,                           
Alabama, with field office locations in Denver, Colorado; Atlanta, Georgia; New Orleans,                       
Louisiana; St. Louis, Missouri; Portland, Oregon; Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; Addison, Houston,                   
and San Antonio, Texas; and Seattle, Washington. This firm provides commercial insurance,                       
construction risk, employee benefits, energy and marine, financial services, recreation marine                     
and surety. McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. is currently under contract with SAHA as the                             
insurance broker of record for property, casualty, and workers’ compensation and benefits                       
consulting services. Their Housing Authority clients include Brownsville Housing Authority;                   
Corpus Christi Housing Authority; Dallas Housing Authority; Pinellas County Housing, Florida;                     
West Virginia Housing Development; Housing Authority of the City of Allentown, Pennsylvania;                       
and Housing Authority of the City of Kokomo, Indiana. McGriff, Seibels & Williams is utilizing the                               
services of a Certified Section 3 Business as a subcontractor. 
 
CONTRACT OVERSIGHT: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and                         
Accounting, and Jennifer Gonzales, Risk Manager, who will monitor the vendor’s adherence to                         
contract requirements and performance. The Procurement Department will be responsible to                     
ensure the vendor submits the Contractor’s Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis,                           

Page 23 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

monitor compliance with the vendor’s SWMBE subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide                       
annual contract performance evaluation survey to end users, and assist departments in the                         
contract renewal or new solicitation process.            
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:   
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5967 
Scoring Matrix 
Advertisement List 
 
 

Page 24 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
San Antonio Housing Authority 

Resolution 5967 
 

RESOLUTION 5967, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR INSURANCE                   
BROKER OF RECORD FOR COMMERCIAL PROPERTY CASUALTY AND OTHER SAHA                   
INSURANCE RELATED SERVICES TO MCGRIFF, SEIBELS & WILLIAMS, INC. FOR AN ANNUAL                       
CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $24,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE, $25,000.00 FOR                     
YEAR TWO, $26,000.00 FOR YEAR THREE, $27,000.00 FOR YEAR FOUR, AND $28,000.00                       
FOR YEAR FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR                                 
ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 
      
WHEREAS, on July 12, 2019, SAHA issued a Request For Proposals #1906-953-52-4937 for                         
Insurance Broker of Record for Commercial, Property, Casualty, and other SAHA insurance                       
Related Services that closed on August 12, 2019; and 
  
WHEREAS, four proposals were received in response to the RFP; and  
  
WHEREAS, we are recommending contract award to McGriff Seibels & Williams, Inc. They are the                             
highest rated responsive and responsible proposer; and  
  
WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for the insurance broker of record for                       
commercial, property, casualty, and other SAHA insurance related services is not expected to                         
exceed an annual cumulative amount of $24,000.00 for year one, $25,000.00 for year two,                           
$26,000.00 for year three, $27,000.00 for year four, and $28,000.00 for year five and will be                               
funded through the operating budgets and/or available reserves; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
  

1) Approves Resolution 5967, authorizing the award of a contract for insurance broker                       
of record for commercial property casualty and other SAHA insurance related services                       
to McGriff, Seibels & Williams, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed                           
$24,000.00 for year one, $25,000.00 for year two, $26,000.00 for year three,                       
$27,000.00 for year four, and $28,000.00 for year five; for a period of one year with                               
the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms.   

  
2)  Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents                       

associated with this contract. 
  
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Attested and approved as to form: 
Chair, Board of Commissioner 

 _______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 25 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 26 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 27 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 28 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 29 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 30 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

    
RESOLUTION 5966, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR TECHNICAL                   
ACCOUNTING AND GASB CONSULTING SERVICES TO CLIFTONLARSONALLEN, LLP FOR AN                   
ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $100,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE, AND                     
$50,000.00 EACH YEAR FOR YEAR TWO THROUGH YEAR FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE                           
YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS  
 
 
  ________________________     ______________________    ________________________  
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando  Diana Fiedler 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement  Director of Finance and 

and General Services               Accounting 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5966, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
Technical Accounting and GASB Consulting Services to CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP for an annual                       
cumulative amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for year one, and $50,000.00 each year for year                             
two through year five; for a period of one year with the option to renew up to four additional                                     
one-year terms. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The current award recommendation for technical accounting and GASB consulting services is not                         
expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $100,000.00 for year one and $50,000.00                           
each year for year two through year five and will be funded through the operating budget and/or                                 
available reserves. 
 
SUMMARY: 
SAHA requires the services of a consultant to provide advice and technical assistance on                           
complex accounting and financial reporting matters. Additionally, the consultant will be required                       
to conduct a review of new GASB or other applicable accounting pronouncements to include                           
providing recommendations for implementation, as well as, guidance with Uniform Guidance.                     
SAHA does not possess the in-house resources necessary to keep pace with the plethora of                             
emerging accounting rules and compliance requirements. A consultant which SAHA can utilize                       
on an as-needed basis is a viable option due to limited resources, reduced staffing, and ongoing                               
funding issues. The most imminent accounting issue is GASB 87, Leases, which will require a                             
comprehensive review of all of SAHA’s leases and assistance with implementing the standard. 
  
On July 25, 2019, SAHA issued a Request For Proposals #1905-918-49-4931 for Technical                         
Accounting and GASB Consulting Services that closed on August 26, 2019. The RFP was                           
published on the SAHA website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), The Hart Beat, posted on                             
NAHRO, Public Purchase and direct solicited to 112 firms. A total of seven proposals were                             
received in response to this solicitation: Aprio, LLP, BDO USA, LLP, BDK, LLP, Citrin Cooperman,                             
LLP, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP, Deloitte & Touche, LLP, and Innovative Financial Housing Solutions,                       
Inc. (WBE). All proposals were evaluated on the following criteria: experience and capacity of                           
consultant, quality and methodology, disclosures/financial capability, fees/cost, strength of the                   

Page 31 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

consultant’s Section 3 and SWMBE Utilization plans. Based on the above, we are recommending                           
contract award to CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP. They are the highest rated responsive and                       
responsible proposer. 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP was established in 2012, and is the union of CliftonGunderson, founded in                           
1960, and LarsonAllen, founded in 1953. This firm has more than 120 locations across the United                               
States with Texas locations in Austin, Dallas, Fort Worth, Plano, and San Antonio. They offer                             
planning and guidance services to include audit (includes assistance with implementing GASB                       
standards), accounting, and assurance; consulting; global; human resources and search;                   
outsourcing; tax; wealth advisory; business and leadership transitions; employee benefit plans;                     
growth strategies; mergers and acquisitions and investment banking; cybersecurity and risk                     
management; and tax education for CPAs. This firm has received no prior awards from SAHA.                             
Their Texas clients include, but are not limited to, CapMetro, City of Amarillo, City of Georgetown,                               
City of New Braunfels, City of Odessa, State of Texas, Texas Commission on Environmental                           
Quality (TCEQ), and the Texas Department of Transportation. They also work with Housing                         
Authorities to include, but not limited to, Boston Housing Authority, Massachusetts; Cuyahoga                       
Metropolitan Housing Authority, Ohio; District of Columbia Housing Authority, District of                     
Columbia; Fort Worth Housing Authority, Texas; Harris County Housing Authority, Texas; Housing                       
Authority of Baltimore City, Maryland; Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency,                   
California. CliftonLarsonAllen’s Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes providing a training                       
program and on-the-job experience on audit and consulting engagements for Section 3                       
individuals. 
  
CONTRACT OVERSIGHT: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and                         
Accounting, who will monitor the vendor’s adherence to contract requirements and performance.                       
The Procurement Department will be responsible to ensure the vendor submits the Contractor’s                         
Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis, monitor compliance with the vendor’s SWMBE                           
subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide annual contract performance evaluation survey                     
to end users, and assist departments in the contract renewal or new solicitation process.                           
                           
STRATEGIC GOAL:  
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5966 
Scoring Matrix  
Advertisement List 

Page 32 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
San Antonio Housing Authority 

Resolution 5966 
 

RESOLUTION 5966, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR TECHNICAL                   
ACCOUNTING AND GASB CONSULTING SERVICES TO CLIFTONLARSONALLEN, LLP FOR AN                   
ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $100,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE AND                     
$50,000.00 EACH YEAR FOR YEAR TWO THROUGH YEAR FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE                           
YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS  
   
WHEREAS, on July 25, 2019, SAHA issued a Request For Proposals #1905-918-49-4931 for                         
Technical Accounting and GASB Consulting Services that closed on August 26, 2019; and 
  
WHEREAS, seven proposals were received in response to the RFP; and  
  
WHEREAS, we are recommending contract award to CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP. They are the                       
highest rated responsive and responsible proposer; and  
  
WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for technical accounting and GASB consulting                     
services is not expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $100,000.00 for year one                             
and $50,000.00 each year for year two through year five and will be funded through the                               
operating budget and/or available reserves; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
  

1) Approves Resolution 5966, authorizing the award of a contract for Technical                     
Accounting and GASB Consulting Services to CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP for an annual                     
cumulative amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for year one and $50,000.00 each                       
year for year two through year five; for a period of one year with the option to renew                                   
up to four additional one-year terms.  

  
2)  Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents                       

associated with this contract. 
  
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners 
 
Attested and approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 33 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 34 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 35 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 36 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 37 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 38 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 39 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

    
RESOLUTION 5968, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR REMOVAL AND                     
REPLACEMENT OF BATHTUBS, SHOWER PANS, AND ASSOCIATED REPAIRS AT VARIOUS                   
SAHA PROPERTIES TO HARPER PAINTING AND CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR AN ANNUAL                     
CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $170,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE, $180,000.00 FOR                     
YEAR TWO, $210,000.00 FOR YEAR THREE, $235,000.00 FOR YEAR FOUR AND                     
$235,000.00 FOR YEAR FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW                             
UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 
 
 
  ________________________      ______________________    ________________________  
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando Brandee Perez 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement Director of Federal Housing 

and General Services Programs  
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5968, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
removal and replacement of bathtubs, shower pans, and associated repairs at various SAHA                         
properties to Harper Painting and Construction, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount not to                           
exceed $170,000.00 for year one, $180,000.00 for year two, $210,000.00 for year three,                         
$235,000.00 for year four and $235,000.00 for year five; for a period of one year with the option                                   
to renew up to four additional one-year terms.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The current award recommendation for the replacement of bathtubs and shower pans is not                           
expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $170,000.00 for year one, $180,000.00 for                           
year two, $210,000.00 for year three, $235,000.00 for year four and $235,000.00 for year five                             
and will be funded by the operating budget and/or operating reserves. 
 
SUMMARY: 
SAHA requires the services of a contractor to remove and replace bathtubs and shower pans and                               
provide associated repairs on an as needed basis at various SAHA properties, to include Beacon                             
Communities. 
 
On July 11, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1905-934-64-4930 for Removal and                             
Replacement (R&R) of Bathtubs and Shower Pans, SAHA wide, that closed on August 5, 2019.                             
The IFB was published on the SAHA website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), The Hart                             
Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public Purchase and direct solicited to sixty-four contractors. A total of                             
eight bids were received in response to this solicitation: AAA Affordable Plumbing, Heating and                           
Air Conditioning (HABE), AC Plumbing Services (HABE, MBE, SBE), EA Contractor (ESBE, HABE,                         
MBE, SBE, WBE, Section 3 Business), H1 Contracting, LLC (ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE), Harper                           
Painting and Construction, Inc., R&J Muniz Remodeling (ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE, WBE, Section 3                           
Business), Save Co Construction (HABE, Section 3 Business), TME Construction (ESBE, HABE,                       
MBE, SBE, WBE, Section 3 Business). All bids were evaluated on the following criteria: purchase                             
price, reputation of the bidder and their goods or services, quality, the quality of the goods or                                 

Page 40 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

services, extent to which the goods or services meet SAHA’s needs, total long term cost, and any                                 
relevant criteria contained in the solicitation document. Based on the above, we are                         
recommending contract award to Harper Painting and Construction, Inc. They are the lowest                         
priced responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
Harper Painting and Construction, Inc. was founded in 1991, and is headquartered in Adkins,                           
Texas. They provide construction services to residential and commercial clients in the San                         
Antonio and surrounding areas. This contractor provides services in areas to include asphalt,                         
carpentry, concrete, drywall, electrical, housekeeping, HVAC, make ready, masonry, painting,                   
plumbing, resurfacing, sheet rock, tile, and welding. Harper Painting & Construction, Inc. has                         
received prior awards from SAHA for unit make ready and various exterior painting projects.                           
Their client list includes San Antonio River Authority, Port San Antonio, Boeing, and various                           
apartment developments. Their Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes providing classes to                         
Section 3 residents on sheetrock, tape and floating, and interview preparation. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:   
Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5968 
Bid Tabulation 
Advertisement List 
 
 

Page 41 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5968 

 
RESOLUTION 5968, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR REMOVAL AND                     
REPLACEMENT OF BATHTUBS, SHOWER PANS, AND ASSOCIATED REPAIRS AT VARIOUS                   
SAHA PROPERTIES TO HARPER PAINTING AND CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR AN ANNUAL                     
CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $170,000.00 FOR YEAR ONE, $180,000.00 FOR                     
YEAR TWO, $210,000.00 FOR YEAR THREE, $235,000.00 FOR YEAR FOUR AND                     
$235,000.00 FOR YEAR FIVE; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW                             
UP TO FOUR ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERMS 
   
WHEREAS, on July 11, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1905-934-64-4930 for                           
Removal and Replacement (R&R) of Bathtubs and Shower Pans, SAHA wide, that closed on                           
August 5, 2019; and 
  
WHEREAS, eight bids were received in response to the IFB; and  
  
WHEREAS, we are recommending contract award to Harper Painting and Construction, Inc. They                         
are the lowest priced responsive and responsible bidder; and  
  
WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for the replacement of bathtubs and shower pans                         
is not expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $170,000.00 for year one,                           
$180,000.00 for year two, $210,000.00 for year three, $235,000.00 for year four and                         
$235,000.00 for year five and will be funded by the operating budget and/or operating reserves;                             
and 
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
  

1) Approves Resolution 5968, authorizing the award of a contract for removal and                       
replacement of bathtubs, shower pans, and associated repairs at various SAHA                     
properties to Harper Painting and Construction, Inc. for an annual cumulative amount                       
not to exceed $170,000.00 for year one, $180,000.00 for year two, $210,000.00 for                         
year three, $235,000.00 for year four and $235,000.00 for year five; for a period of                             
one year with the option to renew up to four additional one-year terms.  

  
2)  Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents                       

associated with this contract. 
  
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners Attested and approved as to form: 

 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 42 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 43 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 44 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 45 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 46 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 47 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

    
RESOLUTION 5969, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR NATURAL GAS                     
OPERATOR QUALIFICATION TRAINING TO GASTI, INC. (HABE) FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO                       
EXCEED $70,000.00 FOR A TWO YEAR PERIOD; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE                             
OPTION TO RENEW ONE ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERM 
 
 
  ________________________    ______________________      _______________________  
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando  Hector Martinez 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement Director of Construction  

and General Services                 Services and Sustainability 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5969, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
natural gas operator qualification training to Gasti, Inc. (HABE) for an amount not to exceed                             
$70,000.00 for a two year period; for a period of one year with the option to renew one                                   
additional one-year term. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The current award recommendation for the Natural Gas Operator Qualification training is not                         
expected to exceed an amount of $70,000.00 and will be funded through the operating budgets                             
and/or available reserves. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Texas Railroad Commission (RRCT) requires natural gas operator qualification training once                       
every three years to ensure staff are able to recognize, respond, and react to abnormal natural                               
gas systems operating conditions. The RRCT performs a physical audit annually and are required                           
to request task course qualifications of all SAHA personnel that could potentially perform a                           
natural gas system abnormal operation task (CFR 49.192 Subpart N, and Subpart 192.803). 
 
SAHA requires a vendor to provide this training to SAHA Managers, Maintenance Supervisors,                         
and Maintenance Technicians. The training shall include all necessary components to operate                       
natural gas distribution lines (both master metered and non-master metered) efficiently, safely                       
and effectively. Training topics shall include Gas Operator Safety: characteristics and hazards of                         
natural gas, potential ignition sources (indoor and outdoor), recognizing emergency conditions,                     
recognizing and reporting natural gas leaks, proper fire fighting techniques, and controlling the                         
accidental release of gas; Customer Service Part 1: leak classification, operating the combustible                         
gas indicator, operating the flame ionization unit, bar hole testing and purging, leak surveys and                             
patrols, and customer leak investigation; Customer Services Part 2: Combustion and ventilation                       
air, pilot lights, gas - air adjustment, venting, pressure checks to establish gas service, and                             
establishing and disconnecting gas; Receiving and Dispatching: receiving calls, collecting                   
information, relaying information to others, documentation of information; Emergency Response                   
and Restoration of Services: plastic pipe (poly) repair, and lighting appliances. A certificate of                           
completion will be provided to each student that successfully completes the training course. 
 

Page 48 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

On August 8, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1904-924-86-4912 for Natural Gas                             
Operator Qualification Training that closed on August 26, 2019. The IFB was published on the                             
SAHA website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), The Hart Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public                           
Purchase and direct solicited to eleven companies. A total of one bid was received in response to                                 
this solicitation: GASTI, Inc. (HABE). The bid was evaluated on the following criteria: purchase                           
price, reputation of the bidder and their goods or services, the quality of the goods or services,                                 
extent to which the goods or services meet SAHA’s needs, total long term cost, and any relevant                                 
criteria contained in the solicitation document. Based on the above, we are recommending                         
contract award to GASTI, Inc. Their bid was determined to be both responsive and responsible                             
and their pricing was deemed to be fair and reasonable. 
 
GASTI, Inc. was established in 1999, and is located in Corpus Christi, Texas. This contractor                             
self-certifies as an HABE. GASTI, Inc. is a safety training institute that also provides leak surveys                               
and patrols; maintenance of natural gas lines; meter installation; gas leak repairs; installation of                           
gas main and services; and Railroad Commission record keeping. GASTI, Inc. has received prior                           
awards from SAHA for natural gas operator qualification training and natural gas systems                         
inspection, patrols and reporting. Their Texas clients include City of Cotulla; City of Falfurrias; City                             
of Marfa; and City of Ft. Stockton. Additionally, they have worked with the following housing                             
authorities: Balmorhea Housing Authority; Eagle Pass Housing Authority; Haltom City Housing                     
Authority; Duval County Housing Authority; and Corpus Christi Housing Authority. GASTI’s                     
Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan includes providing safety training to Section 3 individuals on                             
Forklift Safety. 
 
CONTRACT OVERSIGHT: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and                         
Sustainability, and Mark DeLuna, Maintenance Superintendent, who will monitor the vendor’s                     
adherence to contract requirements and performance. The Procurement Department will be                     
responsible to ensure the vendor submits the Contractor’s Section 3 Compliance report on a                           
monthly basis, monitor compliance with the vendor’s SWMBE subcontractor good faith utilization                       
plan, provide annual contract performance evaluation survey to end users, and assist                       
departments in the contract renewal or new solicitation process.                            
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:   
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5969 
Bid Tabulation 
Advertisement List 
 
 

Page 49 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
San Antonio Housing Authority 

Resolution 5969 
 

RESOLUTION 5969, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR NATURAL GAS                     
OPERATOR QUALIFICATION TRAINING TO GASTI, INC. (HABE) FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO                       
EXCEED $70,000.00 FOR A TWO YEAR PERIOD; FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE                             
OPTION TO RENEW ONE ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR TERM 
   
WHEREAS, on August 8, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1904-924-86-4912 for                           
Natural Gas Operator Qualification Training that closed on August 26, 2019; and 
  
WHEREAS, one bid was received in response to the IFB; and  
  
WHEREAS, Gasti, Inc. is being recommended for contract award. Their bid was determined to be                             
both responsive and responsible and their pricing was deemed to be fair and reasonable; and  
  
WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for the Natural Gas Operator Qualification                     
training is not expected to exceed an amount of $70,000.00 for a two year period and will be                                   
funded through the operating budgets and/or available reserves; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
  

1) Approves Resolution 5969, authorizing the award of a contract for natural gas                       
operator qualification training to Gasti, Inc. (HABE) for an amount not to exceed                         
$70,000.00 for a two year period; for a period of one year with the option to renew                                 
one additional one-year term. 

  
2)  Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents                       

associated with this contract. 
  
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners 
 
Attested and approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

Page 50 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 51 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 52 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 53 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 54 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
   
RESOLUTION 5970, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR CASSIANO BURN                     
UNITS REHABILITATION TO GEOFILL MATERIAL TECHNOLOGIES, LLC (SBE, SECTION 3                   
BUSINESS) FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,143,437.00 
 
 
  ________________________    ______________________     _______________________  
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando  Hector Martinez 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement  Director of Construction  

and General Services                Services and Sustainability  
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5970, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
Cassiano burn units rehabilitation to Geofill Material Technologies, LLC (SBE, Section 3 Business)                         
for an amount not to exceed $1,143,437.00. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The current award recommendation for the Cassiano burn units rehabilitation is not expected to                           
exceed an amount of $1,143,437.00, to include a base bid in the amount of $917,778.00, plus unit                                 
priced items in the amount of $76,515.00 and a 15% contingency in the amount of $149,144.00                               
that will only be used if necessary. This project will be funded by CFP Grant Funds, insurance                                 
proceeds, and/or available reserves.   
 
SUMMARY: 
Cassiano Homes is a Public Housing family community built in 1953, and is located on the west                                 
side of San Antonio. This community is comprised of 499 units to include 24 one-bedroom, 172                               
two-bedroom, 192 three-bedroom, 85 four-bedroom, and 26 five-bedroom units. SAHA requires                     
the services of a qualified general contractor to rebuild eight units (3023 Laredo, 1501 San Carlos,                               
1523 San Carlos, 1818 Krocker, 942 Merida, 103 San Liro, 2404 Tampico, and 2410 Chihuahua) at                               
this community that have sustained substantial fire and water damage.   
 
On June 24, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1905-909-23-4929 for Cassiano                           
Burn Units Rehabilitation that closed on August 27, 2019. The IFB was published on the SAHA                               
website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), The Hart Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public                         
Purchase and direct solicited to 173 contractors. A total of three bids were received in response                               
to this solicitation: All Pro General Construction, Inc. (DBE, ESBE, HABE, MBE, SBE, Section 3                             
Business), Cleanology Construction Services (ABE, ESBE, MBE, SBE, Section 3 Business), and                       
Geofill Material Technologies, LLC (SBE, Section 3 Business). All bids were evaluated on the                           
following criteria: purchase price, reputation of the bidder and their goods or services, the quality                             
of the goods or services, extent to which the goods or services meet SAHA’s needs, total long                                 
term cost, and any relevant criteria contained within the solicitation document. Based on the                           
above, we are recommending contract award to Geofill Material Technologies, LLC. They are the                           
lowest priced responsive and responsible bidder. 
 
Geofill Material Technologies, LLC was founded in 2003, and is located in Schertz, Texas. This                             
contractor has been certified as an SBE by the South Central Texas Regional Certification Agency                             

Page 55 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

and a Section 3 Business by SAHA. They specialize in commercial and residential services that                             
include construction management services, new construction, rehabilitation and renovations,                 
large and catastrophic loss, roofing, life and safety repairs, interior rehabilitation and finish out,                           
painting and flooring, in house heating and cooling repairs and replacement, energy audits and                           
weatherization. Geofill Material Technologies, LLC has received prior awards from SAHA for                       
Prefabricated Metal Building for Garcia Street Urban Farm; Matt Garcia structural repairs; unit                         
make ready for public housing; 10145 Galesburg reconstruction; H.B. Gonzalez structural and                       
foundation repairs; and Castle Point burned units rehabilitation. They have worked with the                         
following Housing Authorities: Floresville Housing Authority and Schertz Housing Authority. Their                     
Texas clients include City of Aransas Pass, UT Austin Marine Science Institute, Venterra                         
Properties, Starr Properties, and Salt Lake Baptist Church. Their Section 3 Good Faith Effort Plan                             
includes a 30% goal for Section 3 new hires. 
  
CONTRACT OVERSIGHT: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services and                         
Sustainability, who will monitor the vendor’s adherence to contract requirements and                     
performance. The Procurement Department will be responsible to ensure the vendor submits the                         
Contractor’s Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis, monitor compliance with the                         
vendor’s SWMBE subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide annual contract performance                     
evaluation survey to end users, and assist departments in the contract renewal or new solicitation                             
process.                            
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:   
Preserve and improve existing affordable housing resources and opportunities. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5970 
Map and Photos 
Bid Tabulation 
Advertisement List 

Page 56 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
San Antonio Housing Authority 

Resolution 5970 
 

RESOLUTION 5970, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR CASSIANO BURN                       
UNITS REHABILITATION TO GEOFILL MATERIAL TECHNOLOGIES, LLC (SBE, SECTION 3                   
BUSINESS) FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,143,437.00 
   
WHEREAS, on June 24, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1905-909-23-4929 for                           
Cassiano Burn Units Rehabilitation that closed on August 27, 2019; and 
  
WHEREAS, three bids were received in response to the IFB; and  
  
WHEREAS, Geofill Material Technologies, LLC is being recommended for contract award. They                       
are the lowest priced responsive and responsible bidder; and  
  
WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for the Cassiano burn units rehabilitation is not                         
expected to exceed an amount of $1,143,437.00, to include a base bid in the amount of                               
$917,778.00, plus unit priced items in the amount of $76,515.00 and a 15% contingency in the                               
amount of $149,144.00 that will only be used, if necessary. This project will be funded by CFP                                 
Grant Funds, insurance proceeds, and/or available reserves; and  
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
  

1) Approves Resolution 5970, authorizing the award of a contract for Cassiano burn                       
units rehabilitation to Geofill Material Technologies, LLC (SBE, Section 3 Business) for                       
an amount not to exceed $1,143,437.00. 

  
2)  Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents                       

associated with this contract. 
  
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners  
 
Attested and approved as to form: 

 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 
 

Page 57 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

 CASSIANO HOMES MAP

Page 58 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

 CASSIANO HOMES 

Page 59 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

 CASSIANO BURNED UNIT

Page 60 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

 CASSIANO BURNED UNIT

Page 61 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

  CASSIANO BURNED UNIT

Page 62 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 63 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 64 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 65 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 66 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 67 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 68 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 69 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 70 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 71 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 72 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

    
RESOLUTION 5965, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR DEVELOPMENT                   
SERVICES CONSTRUCTION PROJECT MANAGEMENT STAFF AUGMENTATION TO WTP               
AMERICA, LLC FOR AN ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $250,000.00;                     
FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO ONE ADDITIONAL                             
ONE-YEAR TERM 
 
 
  ________________________      ______________________    ________________________  
  David Nisivoccia Steven Morando Timothy E. Alcott 
  President and CEO Director of Procurement Real Estate and Legal 

Services Officer 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5965, authorizing the award of a contract for                         
development services construction project management staff augmentation to WTP America, LLC                     
for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $250,000.00; for a period of one year with the                                 
option to renew up to one additional one-year term. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The current award recommendation for development services construction project management                   
staff augmentation is not expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of $250,000.00 and                           
will be funded through the operating budget and/or available reserves. 
 
SUMMARY: 
SAHA requires the services of a firm to provide qualified individuals for staff augmentation                           
needed by the Development Services and Neighborhood Revitalization Department. This                   
Department needs assistance in the development and management of various construction                     
projects to include, but not limited to: financial analysis, property management, program                       
operations, regulatory compliance, multi-family, single family, commercial, and mixed use                   
projects.   
 
On August 8, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1908-918-31-4948 for Development                           
Services Construction Project Management Staff Augmentation that closed on August 23, 2019.                       
The IFB was published on the SAHA website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), The Hart                             
Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public Purchase and direct solicited to 93 vendors. A total of four bids                                 
were received in response to this solicitation: AGCM, Inc., McKissack & McKissack of Washington                           
(AABE, WBE), Ramel Company, LLC (HABE), and WTP America, LLC. All bids were evaluated on                             
the following criteria: purchase price, reputation of the bidder and their goods or services, the                             
quality of the goods or services, extent to which the goods or services meet SAHA’s needs, total                                 
long term cost, and any relevant criteria contained in the solicitation document. Additionally,                         
bidders were asked to provide a one to two page summary of their proposed candidates                             
experience, as it relates to the qualifications of the job. Based on the above, we are                               
recommending contract award to WTP America, LLC, the second lowest bidder. The candidate                         
offered by the low bidder was not acceptable to SAHA’s Development Services and                         

Page 73 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

Neighborhood Revitalization Department. They preferred the affordable housing experience                 
offered by the candidate of the second lowest bidder.  
 
WTP America, LLC was founded in 1949, in Australia and has been a force in North America since                                   
2015. This company is headquartered in Santa Monica, California, with field office locations in San                             
Francisco, California; Honolulu, Hawaii; Boston, Massachusetts; Kansas City Missouri; New York,                     
New York; Austin and San Antonio, Texas; and Seattle, Washington. This company provides                         
advisory/consultancy services on a wide rage of property and construction endeavors for clients                         
in most business sectors. Additionally, they are able to provide individuals that may be                           
embedded into SAHA’s development services team with experience that includes Cost                     
Management services (to include estimating and cost planning), construction cost management,                     
value management, risk analysis, elemental and functional analysis, and expenditure forecasting;                     
Contract Administration services include progress claim valuations, claims analysis, contract                   
variations, re-measurement for final accounts, final account settlement, and cost audits; and                       
Contract Documentation, to include contractual advice and procurement strategy, tender                   
package measurement, tender and contract documentation, bid evaluation, and contract                   
negotiations. WTP America, LLC has received no prior awards from SAHA. Their client list                           
includes, but is not limited to, Hilton Convention Headquarters, Austin, Texas; Blanton Museum                         
of Art on UT Austin Campus; NLand Surf Park, Austin, Texas; SouthSide on Lamar Loft                             
Apartments, Dallas, Texas; Beach Condos, Galveston, Texas; Ocean Club Resort, Galveston,                     
Texas; Marriott Hotel, Houston, Texas; Waco ISD Sports Complex, Waco, Texas; and Allegan                         
Pharma Clean Room Expansion, Waco, Texas. They have worked with Housing Authorities to                         
include Everett Housing Authority, Washington and Seattle Housing Authority, Washington.  
 
CONTRACT OVERSIGHT: 
Contract oversight will be provided by Lorraine Robles, Director of Development Services and                         
Neighborhood Revitalization, who will monitor the vendor’s adherence to contract requirements                     
and performance. The Procurement Department will be responsible to ensure the vendor submits                         
the Contractor’s Section 3 Compliance report on a monthly basis, monitor compliance with the                           
vendor’s SWMBE subcontractor good faith utilization plan, provide annual contract performance                     
evaluation survey to end users, and assist departments in the contract renewal or new solicitation                             
process.                            
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:   
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5965 
Bid Tabulation 
Advertisement List 
 
 

Page 74 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 

 
San Antonio Housing Authority 

Resolution 5965 
 

RESOLUTION 5965, AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR DEVELOPMENT                   
SERVICES CONSTRUCTION PROJECT MANAGEMENT STAFF AUGMENTATION TO WTP               
AMERICA, LLC FOR AN ANNUAL CUMULATIVE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $250,000.00;                     
FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW UP TO ONE ADDITIONAL                             
ONE-YEAR TERM 
   
WHEREAS, on August 8, 2019, SAHA issued an Invitation For Bids (IFB) #1908-918-31-4948 for                           
Development Services Construction Project Management Staff Augmentation that closed on                   
August 23, 2019; and 
  
WHEREAS, four bids were received in response to the IFB; and  
  
WHEREAS, SAHA is recommending contract award to WTP America, LLC, the second lowest                         
bidder. The candidate offered by the low bidder was not acceptable to SAHA’s Development                           
Services and Neighborhood Revitalization Department. Staff preferred the affordable housing                   
experience offered by the candidate of the second lowest bidder; and  
  
WHEREAS, the current award recommendation for development services construction project                   
management staff augmentation is not expected to exceed an annual cumulative amount of                         
$250,000.00 and will be funded through the operating budget and/or available reserves; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents associated with this contract. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
  

1) Approves Resolution 5965, authorizing the award of a contract for development                     
services construction project management staff augmentation to WTP America, LLC                   
for an annual cumulative amount not to exceed $250,000.00; for a period of one year                             
with the option to renew up to one additional  one-year term. 

   
2)  Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents                       

associated with this contract. 
  
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners Attested and approved as to form: 

 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

 

Page 75 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 76 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 77 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 78 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 79 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 80 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 81 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 82 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY                                                                   October 3, 2019 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
RESOLUTION 5964, AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF PHILLIS WHEATLEY PARK,                 
LOCATED AT 723 ARTHUR STREET, SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78202, TO THE CITY OF SAN                           
ANTONIO TO OWN, MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE AS PART OF THE WHEATLEY CHOICE                       
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPLEMENTATION GRANT INITIATIVE 
 
 
____________________________              __________________________________  
David Nisivoccia    Timothy E. Alcott 
President and CEO   Real Estate and Legal Services Officer 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5964, authorizing the conveyance of Phillis                     
Wheatley Park, located at 723 Arthur Street, San Antonio, Texas 78202, to the City of San                               
Antonio to own, maintain, and operate as part of the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood                         
Implementation Grant Initiative.   
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) approved the use of                         
$709,142.00 in Choice Neighborhood “Housing” funds for the construction of the Phillis Wheatley                         
Park. HUD also approved $200,000.00 in Choice Neighborhood “Critical Community                   
Improvements” funds for art installations within the park. SAHA will convey the park land and                             
improvements at no cost in exchange for ownership, maintenance, and operation of the park in                             
perpetuity by the City of San Antonio.  
 
SUMMARY: 
In December of 2012, the San Antonio Housing Authority (SAHA) was awarded a Choice                           
Neighborhood Implementation Grant, in the amount of $29.7 million dollars, which involves                       
strategies for People, Housing, and Neighborhood. As part of the housing component, residents                         
and community stakeholders asked for a park that the community could use for gatherings and a                               
safe place for children to play.  
 
As a result, SAHA reserved a one acre parcel for a linear park that was planned, designed and                                   
named by the residents and community. SAHA worked in partnership with the City of San                             
Antonio, DHR Architects, and Straight Line Management to build the Phillis Wheatley park. SAHA                           
also worked with artist Reginald Adams, to incorporate art installations that memorialize the poet                           
Phillis Wheately and the actor Ira Aldridge. The artist also included lions that represent the                             
mascot of the former Wheatley High School and decorative tiled benches.  
 
The park includes such amenities as a covered playground, exercise station, grand pavilion,                         
covered sitting areas, green space and water fountain.  
 
STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Empower and equip families to improve their quality of life and achieve economic stability. 
 
 

Page 83 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY                                                                   October 3, 2019 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5964 
Map 
Photos 
 

Page 84 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 

San Antonio Housing Authority 
Resolution 5964 

 
RESOLUTION 5964, AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF PHILLIS WHEATLEY PARK, LOCATED                   
AT 723 ARTHUR STREET, SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78202, TO THE CITY OF SAN ANTONIO TO OWN,                               
MAINTAIN, AND OPERATE AS PART OF THE WHEATLEY CHOICE NEIGHBORHOOD                   
IMPLEMENTATION GRANT INITIATIVE 
 
WHEREAS, in December 2012, the San Antonio Housing Authority (SAHA) was awarded a Choice                           
Neighborhood Implementation Grant, in the amount of $29.7 million dollars, which involves strategies                         
for the People, Housing, and Neighborhood components of the grant; and 
  
WHEREAS, The U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) approved the use of                           
$709,142.00 Choice Neighborhood “Housing” funds for the construction of the Phillis Wheatley Park;                         
and 
  
WHEREAS, HUD also approved $200,000.00 in Choice Neighborhood “Critical Community                   
Improvements” funds for art installations within the park; and   
 
WHEREAS, SAHA, the City of San Antonio, residents and community stakeholders planned and                         
designed a park the community could use for gatherings and a safe place for children to play; and 
 
WHEREAS, SAHA wishes to convey the lot and improvements, known as Phillis Wheatley Park, to the                               
City of San Antonio, at no cost, to own, maintain and operate in perpetuity.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of SAHA hereby: 
 

1) Approves Resolution 5964, authorizing the conveyance of Phillis Wheatley Park, located at                       
723 Arthur Street, San Antonio, Texas 78202, to the City of San Antonio to own, maintain,                               
and operate as part of the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood Implementation Grant Initiative.   

 
2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents and                         

extensions associated with the transaction. 
 
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners Attested and approved as to form: 

 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

 

Page 85 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 86 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 87 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 88 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Page 89 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY        October 3, 2019 
  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
RESOLUTION 5963, AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF TWO VACANT RESIDENTIAL                 
LOTS LOCATED AT 1533 HAYS ST. AND 1535 HAYS ST., SAN ANTONIO, TX 78202, FROM                             
THE SAN ANTONIO HOMEOWNERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES CORPORATION TO THE SAN                 
ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AFFORDABLE                   
HOMES UNDER THE WHEATLEY CHOICE NEIGHBORHOOD INFILL STRATEGY; AND THE                   
EXECUTION OF ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONSUMMATE SUCH                   
TRANSACTION 
 
 
_______________________________ ___________________________________ 
David Nisivoccia  Timothy E. Alcott 
President and CEO Real Estate and Legal Services Officer 

 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 5963, authorizing the conveyance of two                     
vacant residential lots located at 1533 Hays St. and 1535 Hays St., San Antonio, TX 78202, from                                 
the San Antonio Homeownership Opportunities Corporation to the San Antonio Housing                     
Authority to be used for construction of affordable homes under the Wheatley Choice                         
Neighborhood Infill Strategy; and the execution of any and all documents necessary to                         
consummate such transaction.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The two lots, 1533 Hays St. and 1535 Hays St., which are currently owned by the San Antonio                                   
Homeownership Opportunities Corporation, are to be included in the fifteen vacant lots being                         
transferred at no cost to a developer who will finance, construct and sell affordable single-family                             
homes to homebuyers who earn up to 120% of the AMI. Conveyance of the two lots to SAHA will                                     
facilitate their inclusion in the Infill Strategy program. 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has approved both the strategy and                           
the use of conveyance of the lots as an incentive to the developer. The developer is fully                                 
responsible for all costs associated with the financing, construction and sale of the homes. 
 
STRATEGIC GOAL:  
Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 5963 
Maps 
 
 

 
 Page 90 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
San Antonio Housing Authority 

Resolution 5963 
 
RESOLUTION 5963, AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF TWO VACANT RESIDENTIAL LOTS                   
LOCATED AT 1533 HAYS ST. AND 1535 HAYS ST., SAN ANTONIO, TX, 78202 FROM THE SAN                               
ANTONIO HOMEOWNERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES CORPORATION TO THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING                 
AUTHORITY TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AFFORDABLE HOMES UNDER THE                     
WHEATLEY CHOICE NEIGHBORHOOD INFILL STRATEGY; AND THE EXECUTION OF ANY AND ALL                       
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONSUMMATE SUCH TRANSACTION 
 
WHEREAS, the lots located at 1533 Hays St. and 1535 Hays St., San Antonio, TX, 78202, are currently                                   
owned by the San Antonio Homeownership Opportunities Corporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the two lots are to be developed for affordable housing under the Wheatley Choice                             
Neighborhood Infill Strategy, which is part of the Critical Communities Improvement (CCI) Plan. The plan                             
was funded by HUD’s Choice Neighborhood Implementation Grant to address deficiencies in the                         
neighborhood surrounding the redeveloped housing sites; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Infill Strategy conveys vacant lots in the Wheatley area to a developer at no cost for the                                     
construction and sale of single family homes to provide affordable homeownership, while stabilizing the                           
neighborhood; and 
 
WHEREAS, conveyance of the two lots to SAHA will facilitate their inclusion in the Infill Strategy.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the San Antonio Housing                             
Authority hereby:   
 

1) Approves Resolution 5963, authorizing the conveyance of two vacant residential lots                     
located at 1533 Hays St. and 1535 Hays St., San Antonio, TX, 78202, from the San Antonio                                 
Homeownership Opportunities Corporation to the San Antonio Housing Authority to be                     
used for the construction of affordable homes under the Wheatley Choice Neighborhood                       
Infill Strategy; and the execution of any and all documents necessary to consummate such                           
transaction. 

 
2) Authorizes the President and CEO, or designee, to execute all necessary documents and                         

extensions associated with the transaction. 
 
Passed and approved the 3rd day of October 2019. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM  
Chair, Board of Commissioners Attested and approved as to form: 

 
_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
President and CEO 

 

 
Page 91 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

  1533 and 1535 HAYS STREET

Page 92 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

  1533 and 1535 HAYS STREET

Hays St.

Arthur St.

Lockhart St.

St. M
artin  St.

N
. G

evers St.

Page 93 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

  1533 and 1535 HAYS STREET

Page 94 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Board of Commissioners  
 
From: David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 
 
Presented by: Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and General Services 
 
RE: Procurement Activity Report 

 
 
Pest Control Services 
On November 2, 2017 (Item 7), we received approval to award contracts to Pest Management,                             
Inc. and Pied Piper Pest Control to provide pest control services for Public Housing. At the time                                 
approval was received, it was requested that we report the contractors’ performance to the                           
Board prior to exercising each year’s renewal option. 
 
The blanket award allows the user department to assign specific properties to each of the two                               
contractors with reassignment at the department’s discretion. Pest Management, Inc. currently                     
services forty properties and Pied Piper Pest Control services fourteen properties.   
 
Contract Performance Evaluations were sent out to property management to rate the                       
performance of these vendors, during the contract’s first year renewal option. Pied Piper Pest                           
Control received an overall rating of 72.4, which is within the acceptable category. Pest                           
Management received an overall rating of 61.4, which is within the unacceptable category.   
 
After review of the ratings and discussions regarding the performance of these contractors, the                           
Director of Federal Housing Programs has recommended that SAHA renew both contracts with a                           
corrective action plan to improve the performance of both vendors, during the upcoming year. 
 
Current Solicitations: There are currently three Requests For Proposals (RFP) and one Invitation                         
For Bids (IFB) being advertised. The Requests For Proposals are for Castle Point Rehabilitation                           
and Site Improvements, Apartment Marketing Services for Beacon Communities and                   
Pre-Construction and General Contracting Services for SAHA EPC II. The Invitation For Bids is for                             
Submeter Repair and Upgrade for Legacy at Crown Meadows. Additionally, price proposals are                         
being obtained from two roofing companies that are contractors on co-operative purchasing                       
contracts. This co-operative purchase is for Roof Replacements at Parkview Apartments. 
 
Closed/Pending Solicitations: There are three solicitations that have closed and are currently                       
being evaluated. The three solicitations include Exterior and Interior Repairs at Pecan Hill                         
Apartments #117 and #118, Lift Station Maintenance, Repair and Inspection Services for Beacon                         
Communities, and Development Partner for Alazan Apache Courts. 
   
Solicitations in Development: Procurement is currently working on a number of solicitations for                         
advertisement. These include Unit Make Ready Painting Services for Beacon Communities, La                       
Providencia Apartments Exterior Renovations and Site Improvements, Burning Tree Apartments                   
Exterior Renovations and Site Improvements, Churchill Estates and Encanta Villa Apartments                     
Exterior Renovations and Site Improvements, Utility Submeter Billing Services for Beacon                     
Communities, Bulk Waste Pickup Services, Pecan Hill Plumbing Repair for Foundation                     

Page 95 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



 
 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING AUTHORITY October 3, 2019 

Stabilization and Tree Plan, Printing and Publication Services, Public Relations Consulting                     
Services, Elevator Maintenance and Repair Services - Agency Wide, Roof Replacement at Alazan                         
Community Office Building, Demolition of House and Driveway at 1323 N. Walters Street, New                           
Affordable Home Construction Services for Villas de Fortuna (REBID), On Site Construction                       
Security Cameras and Monitoring Services - Mirasol Neighborhoods, Demolition of House at 1071                         
Poinsettia, Development Partners for SAHA Projects - Pool, Retirement Plan Investment Advisory                       
Services, Financial and Compliance Audit Services, HUD Consulting and Guidance Services,                     
Renewal and Change in the Pricing Model for Unlimited Licenses and Paperless Signature                         
Transactions for SAHA Wide Implementation, Move of SAHA JDE Financial Software to Cloud                         
Hosting Infrastructure, Financial Consulting Services for SAHA Employees Pension Plan, Remodel                     
of Vacant Units for ConnectHome Computer Lab and Supportive Services Offices (REBID), Third                         
Party Fleet Maintenance Services, Vending Concessions - Agency Wide, Maintenance and Repair                       
Services for Residential HVAC Systems - Agency Wide,  and Collection Services - Agency Wide. 
 
PROPOSED ACTION: 
None at this time. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Amounts paid according to award provisions. 
 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
Transform core operations to be a high performing and financially strong organization. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Procurement Activity Report 
 

Page 96 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Procurement Activity Report as of September 19, 2019

Solicitations Currently being Advertised

SAHA Department Type Solicitation Name Bidders Conference Closes
Construction Services COOP Roof Replacements at Parkview Apartments N/A N/A

Beacon Communities RFP
Castle Point Rehabilitation and Site Improvements 
(REBID) 9/6/2019 9/20/2019

Beacon Communities IFB
Submeter Repair and Upgrade for Legacy at Crown 
Meadows 9/11/2019 9/25/2019

Beacon Communities RFP Apartment Marketing Services for Beacon Communities 9/13/2019 9/26/2019

Construction Services RFP
Pre-Construction and General Contracting Services for 
SAHA EPC II 9/4/2019 10/11/2019

Solicitations Under Evaluation
SAHA Department Type Solicitation Name Date Closed Status

Agency Wide IFB
Removal and Replacement (R&R) of Bathtubs and 
Shower Pans SAHA Wide 8/5/2019

Risk Management RFP
Insurance Broker of Record for Commercial Property, 
Casualty and Other SAHA Insurance Related Services 8/12/2019

Development Services IFB
Development Services Construction Project 
Management Staff Augmentation 8/23/2019

Board Meeting 
October 3, 2019

Construction Services IFB Natural Gas Operator Qualification Training 8/26/2019
Finance RFP Technical Accounting and GASB Consulting Services 8/26/2019
Construction Services IFB Cassiano Burn Units Rehabilitation 8/27/2019

Beacon Communities QQ
Exterior and Interior Repairs Pecan Hill Apartments  
#117 and #118 7/25/2019

Negotiation Due 
Diligence 

Procurement 
EvaluationBeacon Communities QQ

Lift Station Maintenance, Repair, and Inspection 
Services for Beacon Communities 9/16/2019

Development Services RFP Development Partner for Alazan Apache Courts 9/4/2019
Future Solicitations
Beacon Communities Unit Make Ready Painting Services for Beacon 

Communities September 2019
La Providencia Apartments Exterior Renovations and 
Site Improvements October 2019
Burning Tree Apartments Exterior Renovations and Site 
Improvements October 2019
Churchill Estates and Encanta Villa Apartments Exterior 
Renovations and Site Improvements October 2019
Utility Submeter Billing Services for Beacon 
Communities October 2019
Bulk Waste Pickup Services October 2019
Pecan Hill Plumbing Repair for Foundation Stabilization 
and Tree Plan October 2019

Communications and Public Affairs Printing and Publication Services November 2019
Public Relations Consulting Services November 2019

Construction Services Elevator Maintenance and Repair Services - Agency 
Wide September 2019
Roof Replacement at Alazan Community Office Building October 2019

Development Services Demolition of House and Driveway at 1323 N. Walters 
Street September 2019
New Affordable Home Construction Services for Villas de 
Fortuna (REBID) September 2019
On Site Construction Security Cameras and Monitoring 
Services - Mirasol Neighborhoods October 2019
Demolition of House at 1071 Poinsettia October 2019
Development Partners for SAHA Projects -  Pool November 2019

Executive Retirement Plan Investment Advisory Services October 2019

Finance Financial and Compliance Audit Services October 2019
HUD Consulting and Guidance Services October 2019

Human Resources Financial Consulting Services for SAHA Employees 
Pension Plan October 2019

Innovative Technology Renewal and Change in the Pricing Model for Unlimited 
Licenses and Paperless Signature Transactions for 
SAHA Wide Implementation September 2019
Move of SAHA JDE Financial Software to Cloud Hosting 
Infrastructure November 2019

Public Housing Remodel of Vacant Units for ConnectHome Computer 
Lab and Supportive Services Offices (REBID) October 2019

Procurement & General Services Third Party Fleet Maintenance Services January 2020

Agency Wide Vending Concessions for SAHA - Agency Wide October 2019
Maintenance and Repair Services for Residential HVAC 
Systems - Agency Wide October 2019
Collection Services -  Agency Wide October 2019

Page 97 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Informal Awards Up to $50,000 

SAHA Department Solicitation Name Vendor Amount Date
Federal Housing Programs Sole Source Training Nan Mc Kay and Associates $50,000.00 8/5/2019

Construction Services
Privacy Fence Repair and Chain Link Fence 
Installation at Villa Tranchese R&J Muniz Remodelng $5,977.00 8/7/2019

Public Housing
Erosion Control at Charles Andrews 
Apartments R&C Landscape $3,680.00 8/23/2019

General Services Storage Container Pac-Van, Inc. $3,425.00 8/23/2019

Development Services
Demolition of House & Driveway at 1021 El 
Paso Street JPD Environmental & Demolition $32,322.00 8/27/2019

Beacon Communities Fence Replacement at Crown Meadows EA Contractor $2,800.00 8/28/2019

Public Housing
Sheetrock Installation at Olive Park and 
Village East EA Contractor $2,800.00 8/29/2019

Public Affairs Videography Services IMG Studio $50,000.00 9/6/2019
Beacon Communities Lift Station Clean Out at Bella Claire A-Ram Plumbing $3,495.00 9/12/2019
Public Housing T-Mobil Tablets T-Mobile USA, Inc. $18,900.00 9/12/2019
Public Housing Gutter Repair at William Sinkin A&S Landscaping Services $2,989.00 9/12/2019
Public Housing Wooden Fence Repair at William Sinkin A&S Landscaping Services $2,895.00 9/12/2019
Public Housing Shingle Roof Repairs at Springview Manor Trevino Contractor $2,595.00 9/18/2019

Page 98 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
October 3, 2019 

 
 
Hispanic Heritage Month 
National Hispanic Heritage Month is celebrated from September 15 to October 15 in the U.S. It is a                                   
month of recognizing the contributions of Hispanic and Latinos. This year, SAHA will host a Carribbean                               
themed potluck luncheon. The event, scheduled for mid-day on Friday, September 27, 2019, will                           
provide an opportunity to learn of Hispanic history, heritage and culture. SAHA will also celebrate the                               
event by encouraging staff to decorate department doors that showcase a prominent Hispanic/Latino.                         
Winners will receive prizes for best door decor. 
 

     
  
SAHA Launches United Way Campaign  
United Way is an organization that strives to improve lives by mobilizing the caring power of                               
communities. The San Antonio Housing Authority participates annually in the United Way campaign.                         
SAHA will launch its United Way Campaign, “Serving our Community” September 18 through                         
September 30, 2019. SAHA employees will attend a United Way briefing and have an opportunity to                               
contribute to an organization making an impact in the greater San Antonio Community. SAHA is one                               
of 80 agencies participating in the United Way Campaign and is challenging employees to raise                             
$15,000 for San Antonio. SAHA’s Education Investment Foundation is one of the nonprofits                         
employees can support through the campaign and information will also be provided at the briefings.  
 

    
 
 

Page 99 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



Phillis Wheatley Park Grand Opening 
SAHA celebrated the grand opening of Phillis Wheatley Park, a one-acre recreational area located at                             
the center of East Meadows, the site of the former Wheatley Courts, on September 12, 2019. The                                 
event was filled with music and fun with students from Young Men’s Leadership Academy and                             
Winston Elementary who were the first to play at the park featuring a playscape, pavilion with benches                                 
and board games, a walking path, health and wellness equipment and an open field. The park                               
features historical elements such as memorial walls in honor of Phillis Wheatley and Ira Aldridge,                             
which were unveiled at the event. 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753



SAHA Welcomes 2019 Fall Leadership Class 
The 2019 Fall Leadership Class, the first of two management trainings, began September 6. The Fall                               
training consists of eight workshops related to management development and are facilitated by                         
professors from the University of the Incarnate Word. The second management training class, SAHA                           
Business Acumen, will be held in the spring. The workshops include training that focuses on the basic                                 
framework for effective management and leadership; tools for leading and participating in change                         
efforts; increasing efficiency and effectiveness of staffing decisions and more. Participants can                       
implement these tools and skills into their daily work routines, which will have an overall impact on                                 
their current position or in future roles of leadership within the agency. 
 

 
  
2019 EIF Golf Tournament 
SAHA raised more than $56,000 for the Education Investment Foundation during the Annual                         
Scholarship Par-Tee Golf Tournament on Friday, September 13, at the SilverHorn Golf Club. Each year,                             
the tournament supports EIF’s goal to raise funds for scholarships and academic achievement awards                           
for assisted housing scholars pursuing higher education.  
 

        

Page 101 of 101

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7C8DFB13-CA0D-4103-9D04-90EBFBA43753


	1. Cover-RBM-10-03-19
	1A. Agenda-RBM-10-03-19
	4. Meeting Minutes of September 5, 2019-RBM-10-03-19
	5. Resident Services Comm Update of September 19, 2019-RBM-10-03-19
	6. Resolution 5971-Benefits for 2020-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	6A. Resolution 5971-Benefits 2020-RBM-10-03-19
	6B. Resolution 5971-Benefits 2020-Supporting Docs-RBM-10-03-19
	7. Resolution 5967-Insurance Broker of Record-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	7A. Resolution 5967-Insurance Broker of Record-RBM-10-03-19 (1)
	7B. Resolution 5967-Insurance Broker of Record-Supporting Docs-RBM-10-03-19
	8. Resolution 5966-Tech Acctg _ GASB Consulting Services-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	8A. Resolution 5966-Tech Acctg _ GASB Consulting Services-RBM-10-03-19
	8B. Resolution 5966-Tech Acctg _ GASB Consulting Services-Supporting Docs-RBM-10-03-19
	9. Resolution 5968-Bathtubs and Shower Pans-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	9A. Resolution 5968-Bathtubs and Shower Pans-RBM-10-03-19
	9B. Resolution 5968-Bathtubs and Shower Pans-Supporting Docs.-RBM-10-03-19
	10. Resolution 5969-Natural Gas Operator Qualification Training-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	10A. Resolution 5969-Natural Gas Operator Qualification Training-RBM-10-03-19
	10B. Resolution 5969-Natural Gas Operator Qualification Training-Supporting Doc.-RBM-10-03-19
	11. Resolution 5970-Cassiano Burn Units Rehab-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	11A. Resolution 5970-Cassiano Burn Units Rehab-RBM-10-03-19
	11B. Resolution 5970-Cassiano Burn Units Rehab-Map and Photos-RBM-10-03-19
	11C. Resolution 5970-Cassiano Burn Units Rehab-Supporting Doc.-RBM-10-03-19
	12. Resolution 5965-Development Services Staff Augmentation-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	12A. Resolution 5965-Development Services Staff Augmentation-RBM-10-03-19
	12B. Resolution 5965-Development Services Staff Augmentation-Supporting Docs.-RBM-10-03-19
	13. Resolution 5964-Phillis Wheatley Park Conveyance-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	13A. Resolution 5964-Phillis Wheatley Park Conveyance-RBM-10-03-19
	13B. Resolution 5964-Phillis Wheatley Park Conveyance-Map and Photos-RBM-10-03-19
	14. Resolution 5963-Conveyance of 1533 Hays and 1535 Hays-Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	14A. Resolution 5963-Conveyance of 1533 Hays and 1535 Hays-RBM-10-03-19
	14B. Resolution 5963-Transfer of Vacant Lots on Hays St.-Map and Photo-RBM-10-03-19
	15. Procurement Memo-RBM-10-03-19
	15A. Procurement Report-RBM-10-03-19
	16. President’s Report-RBM-10-03-19

		2019-09-26T12:16:20-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




